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JNITED STATES DISTKICT COURT 
EASTE9.N DISTRICT OF NEW YORK " JUf? 2 6 XU07 a 

DROOI(LYt4 OFFICE 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  X 

. . uNITE3 STATES OF AMERIC 

- aqainst - 

RUSSELL DEFREITAS, (16 U . S . C .  §§ 32iai 181, 
3 

also known as "Mohamme 37 (a), 37 (b) (i) , 
I IEPAHIM, 

al.so kr.own as "A-mir Kareem , 1992(a) (iO), 
and "Winston Kingston," 

AEDUL K A D I K ,  
also known as "Aubrey Michae: 
Seaforth," and 

A9DEL NUK, 
also known as "Compton 
Eversley, " 

1992 (c) ii) , 1992(c) (21, 
2332f (a) (21, 
2 3 3 2 f b  (1) ID), 
2332f b (1) (E! , 
2332f(b) (2) (A), 
L33Zf :bl (21 jC)  
2332f(c), 2 and 
3551 et sea.) 

THZ GZAND JURY CHARGES: 

COUNT OWE 
(Conspiracy to Attack Pub!iic Transportation System) 

I .  On or about ar~d betweec January 1, 2006 and June 

2, 2007, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within xhe 

Eastern Districr of New York and elsewhere, the defendants 

i i i i S S E i L  DEFREITAS, also known as "Mviiaiiuiied," KAREEM I B R A l i I M ,  also 

k.iown as "Amir Kareem" aria "'Winston Kingston," ABDUL ICF.DIR, also 

known as "AuSrey Michael Seaforth," and ABDEL NU2, also known as 

"Comptjn E v e r s l e y , "  together with orhcrs, did knowingly 2nd 

intefitisnally conspire to unlawfclly deliver, place, digcharge 
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and d e r o n s t e  a n  e x p l o s i v e  a n d  o t h e r  l e t h a l  d e v i c e  i n ,  i n t o  and 

against a  p u b l i c  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  sys tem,  t o  w i t :  John  F. Kennedy 

: n t e r n a t l o n a l  A i r p o r t ,  and an  i n f r a s t r u c t u r e  f a c i l i t y ,  t o  w i ~ :  

l u f l  LanKs and p i p e l i n e s  aL Joi!ii F .  K e i l i ~ r d y  I n t e r i - t a t i u n a l  

Ai- rporc ,  w i t h  t h e  i n t e n t  t o  c a u s e  d e a t h ,  s e r i o u s  b o d i l y  i n j u r y  

anti e x t e n s i v e  d e s t r u c t i o n  of  s ~ c h  s y s t e m  and f a c i l i t y ,  where such  

d e s t r u c i i o i i  w a s  l i k e l y .  &- .  re-  =ult i n  m a j o r  ecrononic 1093,  in 

v i o l a t i o n  o f  T i t l e  I S ,  Uniced S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n  2332f : a )  (1;. 

( T i t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  2332f ( a )  (2)' 

., - . d 3 2 f ! b )  (1) (I)), 2332f(b) (i) ( E ) ,  2332f (1;) ( 2 )  !A), 2332ftb) ( 2 )  ( C j ,  

2 3 3 2 f  i c )  and 3551 tit s g . )  

COUNT TWO 
(Conspiracy :o D e s t r o y  E ~ l l d l n g  b y  F l r e  o r  Explosive) 

2 .  On o r  a b o u t  and between J a n u a r y  I., 2006 and Jiine 

2, 2005, b o t h  dates b e i n g  apprnximate and  i n c l u s i v e ,  w i t h i n  t h e  

-- l o s t e r n  D i s t r i c t  o f  N e w  York and e l s e w h e r e ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  

ullSSELL DEFPLITAS, a l s o  known a s  "Mohammed," KP.P.EEM IBRAHIM, a l s o  

known n s  " A r n i r  Kareem" and "Winston K i n g s t o n , "  AEDUL KADIR, a l s o  

known a s  "Aubrey Michae l  Sea fo r t -h , "  and  ABDEL N U R ,  a l s o  known a s  

"Compton E v e r s l e y , "  t o g e t h e r  .v;ith o t h e r s ,  d i d  knowingly  and 

i n t e n t i o n a i l ~  c o n s p i r e  t o  maliciously damage and d e s t r o y ,  by 

Eeans of f i r e  and  a r  e x p l o s i v e ,  a  b u i l d i n g  and o t h e r  z e a l  

p r o p e r r y  used  i n  i n t e r s t a t e  and f o r e i g n  commerce a n d  i n  an 

a c t i v i r y  affecting i n ~ e r s t a t e  and f o r e i g n  conunerce, t o  w i t :  

b u i l d i n g s  and p r o p e r t y  a t  John F. Kennedy I n t e r n a t i o n a l  A i r p o r t ,  

2 
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i r  ~lolsclon of TIrie 18, Unired States Code, Section E44(i). 

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections E44(n) and 3551 

C:I)U?J0T THREE 
(Conspiracy to Artack Aircraft and Aircraft Materials) 

'2 . On or about and b c t w c c n  January 1, 2 0 0 6  and Junc 

2, 2007, both daces being approximate and inclusive, withir~ the 

Eastern District of Xew YorX and elsewhere, the defendants 

FUSSC1.L. I i Z F R E I T A S ,  a2.so know!? as '"Mohammed," KAREEM IBRAHIM, also 

k ~ o w n  as ".%ir Kareem" ai3.d "Wiris-:on Kingston," ABDUL KADIi?, also 

known as "Aubrey Michael Seaforth," and ABDEL NUR, also known as 

%, i.nn!ptni? - Fversley," tnqe.t.her with ot.he.1-s, did knowingly a13d 

intentionally conspire to piace and cause to be placed a 

destrucrive device and substance in, upon and in proximity to, 

and otherwise make and cause to be made unworkable and unusable, 

an aircraft in the special aircraft. jurisdiction of the United 

States and a civil aircraft used, operated and employed in 

ir~terstate, overseas and foreign air commerce, and parts and 

orher materials used and intended to be used in connection with 

the operation of such aircraft, where sach placing and causing to 

be pitaced and such making and causing to be made were likely to 

ecda~ger the safety of such aircraft, in violatLon of Title 18, 
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funired Scares iloce, Section 32 (a) (2j . 

p .  ,~.ltle 18, United States Code, Sections 32 ( a )  (8) and 

COUNT rouR 
(Conspiracy to Destroy Inrernationai Airport Facilities) 

1. On or about and between January 1, 2006 and June 

I ,  20G7, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the 

Eastern Elstrict of New York and elsewhere, the defendants 

I'.USSELI. DETREIT-RS, ~ I s o  known as "!40hanured, '' YJIREEM LBPSIHIM, a160 

known as "Ami. i  Kareem" and "Winston Kingston," ABDUi KADIP,, also 

known as "Aubrey Micnael Seaforth," and ABDEL NUR, also known as 

"Ccnptnn Eversloy," together with others, did knowingly and 

intentionally conspire to uniawfuliy use a device, substance and 

... weapon to destroy and seriously damage the facilities of an 

airporr serving international civil aviation, to wit: John F. 

iCerinedy International Airport, and disrupt tht. services of said 

i - i r p ~ r t . ,  w h e r e  an act was like1.y to endanger safety at said 

airporc, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

37 (a) ( 2 )  . 

(Tirle 18, United States Code, Sections 37(a), 

37 !b) ( I . ) ,  37 (b) ( 2 )  arid 3551 t seq.) 

COLliJT FIVE 
(Conspiracy to Attack Mass Transportati.cn Facility) 

3 .  On or about and between January I, 2006 and June 

2 ,  Z Y O I ,  both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the 
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- - a s t e r n  3 i s t r l c t  o t  N e w  York and e l s e w n e r e ,  t.he d e f e n d a n s s  

?,USSELL DEFREITAS, a l s o  known a s  "Mohammed," KAREEM IBRAHZM, a l s o  

known a s  ".%mi- Kareem" and "Winston K i n g s t o n , "  ABDUL ?LqDIR, a l s o  

known as -Aubrey Michae i  S e a f o r t h , "  and  ABDEL NUK, a l s o  known as  

"Compron E v e r s l e y , "  t o g e t h e r  w i t h  o t h e r s ,  d i d  knowingly and  

* .  i q t e n t i o n a l l y  c o n s p i r e  t o  set r l r e  t o  and p l a c e  a  d e s t r u c t i v e  -. 

iu i i s t~  . -. dili-e and tic-vice i n ,  upur~ a r d  n e a r  a  t e x m i n a l ,  s t r u c t u r e ,  

juppLy and  f a c i l i t y  u s e d  i n  z h e  o p e r a r i o n  o f ,  and i n  s u p p o r t  of 

t h e  o p e r a t i o n  o f ,  a  niass t r a n s p o r i a t i o n  v e h i c l e ,  t o  'wit: f u e l  

t a n k s ,  p i p c l i n c c  and b u i l d i n g s  st John F. Kennedy I n t c r n a x i o n o 2  

A i r p o r z ,  w i t h o u t  l a w f u l  a u t h o r i t y  and p e r m i s s i o n ,  a c d  w i t h  i n t e n t  

t o ,  and knowing and  h a v i n g  r e a s o n  t o  know t h a t  such  a c t i v i t y  

would l i k e l y ,  d i s a b l e  and  wreck a mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  v e h i c l e  

used ,  o p e r a t e d  a n d  employed by a  mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  p r o v i d e r ,  i n  

- ~ i o l a i i . o n  of  T i . t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  States Code, S e c t i o n  1 9 9 2 i a )  (4) (E) . 

( ' i ' i  t l \ e  I R ,  ! i n i  t~ed S t a r e s  cnrle, Sections 1 ¶93(aj ( l o ) ,  

i992 ( c )  i l l ,  1 9 9 2  ( c i  ( 2 )  and 3551 e t  s e a .  

COUNT SIX 
( S u z v e i i l a n c e  o f  Yass T r a n s p o r t a t i o n  F a c i l i t y )  

6. On o r  a b o u t  and between September  1, 2005 and J u n e  

,, 
1, 2037,  b o t h  d a t e s  b e i n q  approx imate  and i n c l u s i v e ,  w l s h i n  t h e  

,- r,as-iern D i s t r i c t  of  N e w  York and e l s e w h e r e ,  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s  

R3SSELL DEFREITAS, a l s o  known a s  "Moharruned," and  ABDUL KADIR, 

a l s o  known a s  "Aubrey Michael  S e a z o r t h , "  t o g e t h e r  w i t h  o t h e r s ,  

d i d  knowingly ,  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  and w i t h o u t  l a w f u l  a u t h o r i c y  and 

5 
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perz.issiui-1 s u i v r i l ,  p l l c ; t u y i e p l i ,  v i d e o t a p e ,  d i a g r a m  and o t h e r w i s e  

c o l l e c t  i n f o r m a t i o n  w i t h  t h e  i n t e n t  t o  p l a n  a n d  assisx i n  

o la r in inq  an a c t  d e s c r i b e d  i n  T i t l e  l E ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, 

S e c t i o n  1 9 9 2 ( a i  ( 4 )  ( D l ,  t o  w i t :  s e t t i n g  fire t o  and plocing a 

d e s t r u c t i v e  s u b s t a n c e  and  d e v i c e  i n ,  upon and  n e a r  a  t e r m i n a l ,  

s t r u c t u r e ,  s c p p l y  and f a c i l i t y  u s e d  i n  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  o f ,  and i n  

s u p p o r t  of  cha o p e r a t i o n  o f ,  a mass t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  v e h i c i e ,  t o  

wit: f u e l  t a n k s ,  p i p e l i n e s  and  b u i l d i n g s  a t  John  F. Kennedy 

I n t e r n a ~ i o n a l  A i r p o r t ,  w i t h o u r  l a w f u l  a u t h o r i t y  and p e r m i s s i o n ,  

,and with intent to, and knowing and h a v i n g  r e a s o n  t o  know z h a t  

a c C i v i t y  would l i k e l y ,  d i s a b l e  and wreck a  mass 

c r a n s p o r t a t i o n  v e h i c l e  u s e d ,  o p e r a t e d  2nd employed by a  mass 

r r a n s p o r t a t i o n  p r o v i d e r .  

( T i t l e  1 8 ,  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  Code, S e c t i o n s  1 3 9 2 ( a } ( B j ,  

1 9 9 2  ( c )  ( 3 . 1 ,  199'3 ( c )  (21 ,  2 and 3551 e t  s e q . )  

A TRUE RILL 

.- 

UN1'; 'LU STA'CES li'?TOKNEY 
EASTERN D I S T R I C T  OF MEW YORK 
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